ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
July 17, 2008
4:00 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough, Co-Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom

Represent ati ve Mark Neuman

Representative Kurt O son

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha

Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Bryce Edgnon (via tel econference)
Representative Scott Kawasaki (via teleconference)
Representative Peggy WIson (via tel econference)
Senat or Joe Thomas (via tel econference)

Senat or Thomas WAgoner

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 4002
"An Act establishing the Alaska resource rebate program and
relating to the program and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 4003

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations to the Al aska Energy
Aut hority for power cost equal i zat i on; maki ng speci al
appropriations to the Departnent of Revenue and to the
Department of Health and Social Services for the Al aska resource
rebate program nmaking a special appropriation to the Departnent
of Revenue for the paynment of certain shared taxes relating to
aviation fuel; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- July 17, 2008



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BI LL: HB4002
SHORT TI TLE: RESOURCE REBATE PROGRAM FOR RESI DENTS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

07/ 09/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
07/ 09/ 08 (H CRA, FIN

07/ 11/ 08 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

07/ 11/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

07/ 11/ 08 (H M NUTE( CRA)

07/ 15/ 08 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

07/ 15/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

07/ 15/ 08 (H M NUTE( CRA)

07/ 17/ 08 (H) CRA AT 4:00 PM Anch LI O Conf Rm

Bl LL: HB4003
SHORT TITLE: APPROP: ENERGY REL| EF/ REBATE/ FUEL TAX
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

07/ 09/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
07/ 09/ 08 (H) CRA, FIN

07/ 11/ 08 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

07/ 11/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

07/ 11/ 08 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

07/ 15/ 08 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

07/ 15/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

07/ 15/ 08 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

07/ 17/ 08 (H) CRA AT 4:00 PM Anch LI O Conf Rm

W TNESS REG STER

| NEZ W\EBB

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support HB
4002 and HB 40083.

APRI L FERGUSON

Acting Chief Operating Oficer

Bristol Bay Native Corporation (BBNC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4002 and HB
4003.

ANDREA VEATCH
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- July 17, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in opposition
of HB 4002 and HB 4003.

DARYL NELSON

Chugi ak, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

BONNI E NELSON

Chugi ak, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

PAUL D. KENDALL

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

MARGARETT MANOUSOFF

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Representing Al aska Conservation Sol utions,
testified on HB 4002 and HB 4003.

MARYANNE PEASE

MAP Consul ting

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4002 and HB
4003.

RAY WARD

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support of
HB 4002 and HB 4003.

JODI KAREZ

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

SARA SCANLAN, Deputy Director

Rur AL CAP Anchorage, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 4002 and HB
4003.

SALLY SPI EKER
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- July 17, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

PATRI CK LUBY, Advocacy Director

AARP

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 4002 and HB 4003.

DI ANE HOLMES

Anchor age, Al aska

Representing self

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

TOM KAKOSH

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

JEFF STEVEN

Uni ted Fi sherman's Marketing Association (UFMA)

Kodi ak, Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self and the UFMA, testified
in support of HB 4002 and HB 4003.

ROCHELLE VAN DEN BRCEK

Executive D rector

Cordova District Fishernen United

Cordova, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self and CDFU, testified in
support HB 4002 and HB 4003.

DEBORAH TEMVERVAN

Cordova, Al aska

Representing self

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support of
HB 4002 and HB 4003.

KEI TH VAN DEN BROEK

Cordova, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support of
HB 4002 and HB 4003.

GARY HAY
Tok, Al aska

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- July 17, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

SHEI LA HOWNE

Anchor age Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

GARY HART

Nonme, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

BARBARA MADI SON

Anbl er, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support HB
4002 and HB 4003.

GEORGE QUY

Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified in support HB
4002 and HB 4003.

ALVERN CLEVELAND

Noor vi k, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self and the Cty of Noorvik
testified on HB 4002 and HB 4003.

JAVES HOTAI

Val dez, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

JAMES FLOYD

Tok, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Representing self, testified on HB 4002 and
HB 4003.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR GABRIELLE LeDOUX called the House Conmunity and
Regi onal Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 4:00:24
PM Representatives Salnon, Dahlstrom Neuman, O son, LeDoux

and Fai r cl ough wer e pr esent at t he cal | to order.
Representative Cissna arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- July 17, 2008



Represent ati ves Edgnon, Kawasaki, and WIson and Senators
Wagoner and Thonas (via tel econference) were also in attendance.

HB4002- RESOURCE REBATE PROGRAM FOR RESI DENTS
HB4003- APPROP: ENERGY RELI EF/ REBATE/ FUEL TAX

4:00: 35 PM

CO CHAI R LeDOUX announced that the only order of business would
be a hearing on two bills: HOUSE BILL NO 4002, "An Act
establishing the Alaska resource rebate program and relating to
the program and providing for an effective date.”; and HOUSE
BILL NO 4003, "An Act nmking supplenental appropriations to the
Al aska Energy Authority for power cost equalization; making
speci al appropriations to the Departnent of Revenue and to the
Department of Health and Social Services for the Al aska resource
rebate program nmaking a special appropriation to the Departnent
of Revenue for the paynment of certain shared taxes relating to
aviation fuel; and providing for an effective date."

4:01: 26 PM

I NEZ WEBB stated that everyone is aware of the devastation to
the econony from increased oil prices and “feel it in the
pocket books” no matter what residence. She explained that she
was born and raised in Dillingham as were her parents and
gr andnot hers. She offered that she is fortunate to have a
“decent job” and to live in Anchorage where energy costs are
still reasonabl e. However, the sane cannot be said for her

relatives in rural Al aska who experience astronom cal cost of
living expenses, she stated. She opined that while many factors
contribute to the high cost of living, transportation costs are
t he key. She offered that consunmer products nust be barged in
or flowmn in and account for the cost of mlk at $8 per gallon,
cereal at $7.50, ice creamat $9 for one-half gallon, and that a
smal | package of diapers costs $30. Furthernore, fuel costs are
high with gas prices at $6.23 per gallon |ast week. She al so
noted that Dillingham is a hub comunity and that surrounding
vi |l | ages experience nuch higher costs.

M5. WEBB related that she uses every nmeans possible to assist
her famly by purchasing goods in Anchorage and transporting
them to Dillingham using “snail mail,” or urging colleagues to
take an extra piece of luggage when traveling to Dillingham
Al though this helps, it is not enough, she said. She expressed
concern that her famly is at risk. She offered that HB 4002
and HB 4003 will only provide a short-term fix for a nationw de

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- July 17, 2008



problem the bills will help Al askan famlies survive the |ong
W nter. She characterized Al aska as one conmunity and urged
menbers to please provide funding for these bills. She t hanked
menbers for their consideration of HB 4002 and HB 4003 and for
their dedication and service to Al askans.

4:04:18 PM

APRI L FERGUSON, Acting Chief Operating Oficer, Bristol Bay
Native Corporation (BBNC), offered her belief that no other
issue is as inportant or as critical as energy. She commended
the legislature’s proactive stance to address this issue prior
to this comng wnter. She offered that all comrunities in
Al aska have been affected by the increased cost of fuel,
particularly the majority of the communities in the state that

are “off the road system?” She opined that these conmunities
are seriously challenged to maintain infrastructure and their
community menbers during the w nter nonths. She characteri zed
the energy issue as a “state of energency” in Al aska. She

thanked legislators for bringing this issue before the
| egi sl ature and the public at large. She further opined that if
solutions are not imediately forthcom ng to reduce hone heating
fuel costs, it will be necessary to airlift energency shipnents
into small comunities at an enornobus cost to the state. She
offered that HB 4002 and HB 4003 are bills that recognize that
an “economc train weck” is conmng and will help Al askans. She
offered her belief that everyone agrees that no one solution
exists for Alaska s energy problens since Alaska is the |argest
and nost geographically diverse state in the United States.
Thus, Alaska’s transportation corridors and infrastructure are
uni que and underdevel oped. She stated that delivering fuel in a
timely and econom cal fashion requires a massive and cunbersone
di stribution network.

MS. FERGUSON sai d:

The fact is our state has becone diesel dependent. I
spoke to a resident of South Naknek yesterday and he
told ne that 40 years ago every household had a w nd
charger and a set of battery banks. Then, diesel cane
al ong and everything changed. So change is com ng and

we are wlling to change. All the communities in
Bristol Bay are preparing for a lean wnter. The
magni tude and speed of this change, however, is
unpr ecedent ed. I’m asking the legislature to cone

together on this issue and reach out and grab their
nei ghbors by the hand. W have to help each other and

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- July 17, 2008



we have to do it quickly. The dramatic increases in
oil prices over the past two years could not have been
predi ct ed. Recent studies by the University of Al aska
in 2007 show that sone households are paying as nuch
as 47 percent of their inconme for home energy costs
and that was l|ast year. \What do we expect themto do
this winter? And where do we think the prices are
going to go? W have no idea.

M5. FERGUSON conti nued. She opined that the dramatic increase
in oil prices over the past tw years have had a devastating
econom c effect on all Al askans. However, state revenues are
increasing due to oil prices. She asked legislators to use
Al aska’s natural resources to address the imredi ate energy needs
of its ~citizens and establish long-term plans to reduce
dependence on fossil fuels. Additionally, rising energy costs
have had a debilitating effect on small businesses, schools,
water and waste facilities, airports, ports, ferry systens,
processors and fishernmen, she stated. She urged the legislature
to investnment and maintain infrastructure across the state. She
opined that it takes community to “take care of our own.”

M5. FERGUSON further stated that the BBNC strongly supports HB
4002 and HB 400S3. She opined that the $1,200 rebate and the
provisions protects |lowincone citizens and represents good
public policy during a time of economc conditions and state
revenue surplus. The suppl enental appropriations wll cover
funding shortfalls for the Power Cost Equalization program
(PCE), which is essential to offset the effect of higher fuel
costs on electric power in all “off road” areas of the state.
Furthernore, the BBNC supports consideration of developing a
“l'ife line” by supplying famly fuel paynents to ensure that
adequate supplies of heating fuel are affordable for al

househol ds, perhaps “along the lines of the PCE program?”
Additionally, the BBNC respectfully requests consideration for
increases to PCE that would recognize the dramatic effect higher
oil prices have on electricity costs in areas dependent on
di esel fuel. She suggested that the 52 percent per Kkilowatt
hour (kW) in the paynent cal culation be indexed to fluctuations
in the average ANS West Coast oil price. She highlighted that
the average fiscal year 2007 price of oil is $61.63 per barrel
as reported by the Al aska Departnent of Revenue (DOR). She
mai ntai ned that the |egislature nust develop a |ong-term energy
strategy. Finally, she offered that the BBNC al so supports the
Al aska Federation of Natives’ (AFN) resolution that would
establish the basics for a long-term energy policy and would
provide for the equalization of energy costs for all Al askans

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- July 17, 2008



while providing significant funding for |ong-term devel opment of

alternative energy resources and conservation neasures. She
t hanked nenbers and enphasized that action taken now wll save
“nmoney, enbarrassnent, and heartache later.” She concl uded by
stating, “lmagine, if you wll, a headline that wll advertise
t hat Al askan communi ties fragnmenti ng, in m gration,
infrastructure failing, in a state with a nulti-billion dollar
surplus. It doesn’'t nake sense.”

4:11: 07 PM

CO CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH inquired as to how Dillingham is preparing
for the upcom ng w nter. She recalled testinony in Barrow that
some communities were still using oil or diesel that was
pur chased under |ast year’s shipnment. She further recalled that

communities were anticipating dramatic increases in fuel costs
when comunities would use this sumer’s bulk fuel at higher
prices.

M5. FERGUSON agreed that the situation is very nmuch the sanme in
Di|I'1i ngham She offered that the comunity and nany agencies
currently are attenpting to address fuel costs through
di scussions with distributors and reviewing the tank situation.
She noted that the BBNC is working to develop a policy paper on
i ssues such as the bulk fuel storage, but that it takes tine to
reach consensus.

COCHAIR FAIRCLOUGH recalled testinony that indicated that
enough funding was invested in the |oan guarantee program She
inquired as to whether other nenbers recalled this and opined
that it was not necessary to address increased funding for the
bul k fuel |oan guarantee program during the special session.

4:13: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN offered his understanding that the BBNC
has been “doing fairly well.” He inquired as to whether the
BBNC is offering any cash contributions to its nenbers to assist
themw th energy costs.

M5. FERGUSON clarified that she is speaking on behalf of the
BBNC, which is a “for-profit” corporation. She expl ai ned that
the BBNC i ssues dividends on a quarterly basis. She noted about
40 percent of the BBNC s shareholders reside in the region. She
further clarified that she is not speaking only about the BBNC s
sharehol ders, but is speaking on behalf of all Al askans in al

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -9- July 17, 2008



areas of the state. She mai ntained that rural Al askans in “off
road” comunities are in grave danger.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN inquired as to any of BBNC s internal
prograns to reduce energy costs such as providing investnents in
al ternatives neans of power such as solar power or wnd power to
reduce energy costs.

VS. FERGUSON offered her belief that all of the rural
communities are interested in alternative energy solutions. She
expl ained that funding for prograns such as weatherization wll
be available for residents throughout the state and opi ned that
the BBNC will certainly make use of energy prograns. She said,
“I' would make a pitch for 'regional power authority' to enable
renote areas of the state access to sone of the funds.” She
spoke in favor of allocating funds for alternative energy fuels
currently being considered by the |egislature. In further
response to Representative Neuman, Ms. Ferguson answered that
BBNC is a for-profit corporation that would be interested in
investing in alternative energy sources. She related her
understanding that Representative Neuman’s question is whether
BBNC is purchasing wind energy progranms for residents. She
opined that residents in the region are exploring as many
alternative energy sources as possible. She noted that in a
recent visit she observed alternative energy “springing up” in
Dillingham such as use of external wood boiler stoves that
reduce dependence on diesel to zero. However, she noted that
l[imted wood supplies are available in the region.

4:18:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked how many bul k fuel dealers operate in
D | Ii ngham and about fuel prices.

M5. FERGUSON stated that she thought there were two deal ers and
home heating fuel costs are currently set at $5.60 per gallon.
However, she pointed out that the comrunity is still wutilizing
fuel bought at a cheaper rate. She, noting that she is not an
expert in this area, offered her belief that fuel prices wl
reach $8. 00-$8.50 per gall on.

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON rel ated his understanding of the issues in

the Dillingham area. He noted that in his legislative district
the current fuel cost in one village has already reached $8 per
gal | on. He offered that 150 gallons of heating fuel costs
$1, 200. He expressed concern about the inpact on rura

residents facing winter tenperatures of 60 degrees below zero

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 10- July 17, 2008



He highlighted that HB 4002 will provide relief for only this
year. He predicted that the cost of fuel issues will continue.
He inquired as to whether M. Ferguson could offer any |ong-
range sol utions.

M5. FERGUSON surm sed that the whole state is “grappling” for
sol uti ons. She acknow edged that a $1,200 fuel rebate would be

“a drop in the bucket.” She urged the legislature to take
i medi ate action, followed by seeking long-term solutions for
fuel costs. She opined that the cost of fuel is a statew de

issue that she does not want to turn into an urban-rural
di scussi on.

4:21:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA suggested that the commttee should be
briefed on the rural funding nechanisns to better understand
rural Al askan i ssues. She asked whether M. Ferguson could
coment .

M5. FERGUSON stated that many experts will provide assistance to
help the BBNC develop policy papers to ensure that the
| egi slature has enough information during its deliberations.
She maintained the far reaching inplications of fuel costs on

busi nesses, schools, stores, and wastewater facilities. She
expressed concern that conmunities need to have sufficient fuel
to support the infrastructure or the communities wll die. She

pointed out that mning and fishing in rural Al aska helps
support the economies in urban conmunities such as Anchorage and
Fai r banks. She surmsed that it will be difficult to continue
with resource devel opnent in Alaska wthout mai nt ai ni ng
sufficient infrastructure and port facilities in the state.

CO- CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH rem nded nmenbers that the issues before the
committee are HB 4002 and HB 4003. She highlighted that while
the issues raised are inportant, the conmttee should not
consider those concepts at the expense of the legislation
currently before it. She pointed out that the conmmttee is
scheduled to hear testinony from the Al aska Energy Authority
(AEA) next week.

4:26:11 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA posited that an wunderstanding of the
dynam cs of sone of the community and regional affairs issues

will also provide an understanding of the overall energy inpact
for individuals.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- July 17, 2008



CO CHAIR FAIRCLOUGH noted that M. Steve Haagenson, Executive
Director, AEA, has prepared a district-cost factor analysis by
region, which was recently presented to the Al aska State Chanber
of Commer ce. She surmised that a rough draft of the analysis
woul d soon be available for the commttee to consider.

4:27:09 PM

ANDREA  VEATCH stated t hat she opposes “the possi bl e
i ndiscrimnate squandering of $1.2 billion dollars.” She
offered her support for “targeting needs and providing
assi stance,” but she said that she did not think that all needs
are equal . She recalled when President Bush decided to send

everyone in the United States a check, but a few nonths [later
[the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001] occurred. She
opi ned that the aforenentioned scenario illustrates that no one
can predict what |ies ahead. She spoke in favor of “targeting”
needs not only for energy, but for public safety. She expressed
concern over the budget reductions to the Departnent of Public
Safety’s (DPS) budget, which are small conpared to the proposed
energy rebates. She noted that Al aska has the highest incidence

of rape in the nation. She suggested that the energy rebate
funds under consideration could better be used to address public
safety issues. She reiterated that her point is that sone

functions only governnent can address and that the |egislature
must determne how to “handle the public problenms” such as
provi di ng adequate | aw enforcenent for citizens. She maintained
her concern that the state needs to address problens such as the
hi gh i nci dence of rape.

M5. VEATCH recalled editorials that addressed issues such as
rape, murder, and food banks, regardless of the resident’s
| ocati on. She expressed concern that the [resource rebate]
would be issued to all Alaskans and not based on need. She
opi ned that the current proposal needs to be “well-thought out,”
targeted to those who need relief, and limted to “arenas that
only governnent can serve

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON i nquired as to whether she could offer any
solutions since she is opposing the $1,200 proposed resource
rebate program

M5. VEATCH answered that the needs in rural communities are
“dire" and “real” and that the legislature should help them
However, she characterized providing $1,200 to all residents in
Anchor age regardl ess of their circunstances as ridicul ous.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- July 17, 2008



4:31:56 PM

DARYL NELSON stated that the proposed $1,200 rebate will not

solve the problem or even “scratch the surface.” He suggested
that the state should invest in its owm oil wealth and hire its
own producers. He pointed out that in Venezuela gas costs
approximately $.30 per gallon since the country owns the wells
and the producers do not receive “a big profit.” He urged
| egislators to consider three things: one, to ensure that

health care is a right for all Al askans; secondly, the state
should invest in its own oil wells, and, thirdly, the state
shoul d invest in mass transit solutions for the entire state.

4:35:51 PM

BONNI E NELSON agreed with the comments of M. Daryl Nelson. She
opined that the state is in a statew de energency situation and
the $1,200 rebate being considered does not represent the best
managenent of the state’ s resources. She surmsed that wth
citizen involvenent at the local |evel government can perform
wel | . She offered her belief that government should be held
accountable and should provide public safety, transit, and
nmedi cal care first. She opined that |ocal governnent should be
enpowered to re-direct state and federal funds that are
collected from its citizens. She favored distributing rebate
funds to | ocal governnment such as the Matanuska- Susitna Borough

rather than to individuals. She opined that rural comunities
are affected nobst and should obtain the greatest share. She
wondered if this program is being considered since it *“looks
good” and nmmy “get votes.” She suggested that instead, the
funding should be wused for investnents. Wth regard to the
Al aska Gasline Inducenent Act (AG A) process, she said she does
not trust the producers and offered that she agrees with forner
Governor Hickel that Al aska is an owner state. She opined that
Port MacKenzie is a better location than Valdez [for the
termnus of an in-state gas line.] She thanked | egislators and
Governor Palin for their work.

4:40: 23 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN of fered his understanding that the Nel sons
are stating that it is better to take the $1,200 and re-invest

it inthe state to assist the comuniti es as a whol e.

M5. NELSON concurred, adding her preference for state revenue
sharing rather than distributions to individuals.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 13- July 17, 2008



4:41:22 PM

PAUL D. KENDALL directed attention to Popul ar Science nagazine
pictures of what he called "the house of the future,” which he
stated is an all-fuel cell based house. He then said that he
has been involved in energy activismfor a long tinme. He opined
that Al aska doesn’'t have an energy problem since plenty of
energy is avail able. Instead, he opined, what is lacking is “a
| eadership vision.” He further opined that |eadership could
“command the wel |l head and stop the plundering of our hones.” He
offered his belief that it is our homes that hold us together,
allow us to be individuals, and to form societies. Absent
societies, “free enterprise” could not exist.

MR. KENDALL characterized the current situation as “a perfect

stornt headi ng Al aska's way. He sai d: “The one thing | think
we have learned is this: we will never be a free people until
we secure the energy.” He offered to donate his $1,200 to a

coll ective cause that would ensure electrical generation — based
on water, not on fossil fuels - for one village to enable that
village to be *“all electric® with “electric vehicles.” He
highlighted that the state has hydroelectric potential. He
concl uded by opining that one mssing elenent in our “societies”
is the “elenment of time” such that people could converse wthout
having “a sense of urgency.”

4:47:12 PM

MARGARETT MANOUSCFF stated that she wished to submt for the
record sone analytical papers that discuss the followng three

t opi cs: why a resource rebate is not in the state’ s best
interest; why notor fuel taxes should not be suspended; and
alternative approaches to address Alaska s energy needs. She
hi ghlighted sonme of the nobst conpelling reasons against the
$1,200 rebate, including that the resource rebate is not a
viable solution since it will be politically inpossible to end

the rebate program so long as energy prices renmain high. Since
the rebates are subject to federal taxes, 10 to 35 percent of
the rebate will be remtted to the federal governnent, she
opi ned. Finally, the programis not targeted to those “nobst in
need” nor does the program require that the resource rebate
funds be spent on energy expenses. She noted that Al askans wl|
soon receive their permanent fund dividend (PFD) checks, which
could be applied to energy expenditures, particularly given that
the amount of the PFD is expected to increase and will arrive
prior to winter. She opined that the distribution of two checks

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -14- July 17, 2008



- the PFD and the resource rebate - nmay result in undesirable
soci al repercussions such as attracting people to the state who
are only interested in the checks and are not interested in
establ i shing residency. She further opined that the resource
rebate would be negatively perceived in Washington, D.C, which
could have serious consequences in terns of future federal
funding for Al aska.

M5. MANOUSOFF opined that common resources should be invested
for the common good and should be used for community projects
rather than as a windfall to individual citizens. She stated
that the Alaska Conservation Solutions believes better ways
exist to address the critical problens of soaring energy costs.
She referred to a docunent titled “Energy Relief Savings and
Efficiency Plan,” which provides suggestions for ener gy
conservation and efficiencies that wll benefit Al askans both
now and for decades to cone.

M5. MANQUSOFF, with regard to the appropriation bill, noted that
t he governor has actively sought help. She opined that Al aska
is at a “critical crossroads” and could inplenent a thoughtful
and conprehensive strategy that would have immediate and | ong-
term benefits, or it could sinply apply “aspirin and band-ai ds”
that will alleviate and nask synptonms, but do little to treat
t he di sease. She stated that if the state sinply subsidizes
fossil fuel consunption by all Alaskans, it wll increase our
dependence on foreign supplies of oil, create inequities, fai
to address the root causes of the problem and establish a
nmassi ve subsidy that will be nearly inpossible to undo in the
future. She offered that nunerous responsible strategies exist
that woul d provide imrediate and long-termrelief to high energy
prices and reduce the state’s demand on fossil fuel. She
suggested that if the state is prepared to spend over $800
mllion for resource rebates, it can use those funds to make
“smart, equitable, long-lasting investnents” that wll benefit
the state for years to cone - to lower our carbon footprint,
make Al aska a nodel for others, and provide critical relief for
peopl e throughout the state, particularly those nobst in need.
In conclusion, she offered Al aska Conservation Solutions
commtment to assist in finding the best ways to address soaring
energy costs in Al aska. She urged the conmittee to incorporate
the proposals in the “Energy Relief Savings and Comm tnent Pl an”
into the dialogue as the comrittee works to address the energy
i ssues that currently face Al askans.

4:53:12 PM

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -15- July 17, 2008



MARYANNE PEASE, MAP Consulting, stated she is working to assist
the BBNC on behalf of energy-related issues. She noted that as
W nter approaches, Alaskans are facing the econom c prospect of
unprecedented costs for energy, particularly for heating their

homes and busi nesses. She related that she attended a recent
energy summt in Dillingham in which local villages discussed
the inpending crisis. She related that elders, health clinic

officials, and school officials consistently pointed out that
the last barge arrives in Dillingham in Septenber, fuel costs
are at an wunprecedented high, and people are leaving the
comunity. She opined that this crisis isn't occurring in
Anchorage, and relayed her belief that the state needs an
i mredi ate neasure to assist rural Alaskans in a tinely manner.
She further opined that the PFD will arrive too late to provide
the needed relief. She stated that citizens in Wstern Al aska
are dependent on local electric and fuel sources and are
burdened by the high cost of the product, particularly due to
the enornous transportation costs for fuel. She urged passage
of HB 4002 and HB 4003 in an expeditious manner to provide a
smal | nmeasure of assistance to rural residents faced with the
econonmi ¢ dil emma of buying energy or other necessities.

M5. PEASE noted that barge costs are escalating and appear to
track oil prices. She characterized the resource rebate as a
“short-term band-aid on a very |arge wound that needs much nore
serious attention.” She suggested that the |egislature work
toward a conprehensive and long-term solution to rural energy
costs. She offered that econony of scales associated wth
energy production and distribution exist, but Alaska s energy
costs are disproportionate to the rest of the country,
particularly in rural Al aska. She further noted that energy
reserves and potential in-state — developed and undevel oped -
econom c activity continues to be hanmstrung by the high energy
costs. She said, “Qur state has tons of noney thanks to record

high oil prices, but mny of our <citizens are bleeding
economcally for the sane exact reason. W need a concerted
effort to pronote small scale, self-sustaining energy options in
rural areas.” She pointed out that sone people are installing
w nd- powered turbines. Furthernore, it 1is not a foregone
conclusion that people will use the resource rebate to continue
dependence on fossil fuels, she stated. | nstead, the resource

rebate can be better used to develop w nd, hydroelectric, and
wood burning alternatives.

M5. PEASE related that regional centers such as D llingham

Bethel, and None are facing the sane crises as the outlying
vil | ages. She expressed concern that wi t hout vi abl e

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 16- July 17, 2008



alternatives to the present situation, entire regions of the

state will cease to function economcally. She highlighted that
renewabl e energy needs to be part of the strategic plan for
energy solutions. However, many projects may take years to
i npl enent, she | anented. She concluded by stating that the
short-term solution is inproved by HB 4002 and HB 400S3. She
urged nenbers to invest in infrastructure and nmandate a
“renewable mx with fossil fuels” for our electric utilities as
part of the overall state energy plan. She said, “The key
nmessage is that the current reliance on fuel oil nust be
diversified.” She urged the commttee to provi de assistance and
| eadership, which is critical to the econom c survival of rura
Al aska. She offered to provide the conmttee with information

on hone heating oil equivalents and PCE

4:58: 54 PM

RAY WARD stated that he is pleased that the governor is “guiding
the state.” He thanked the conmttee for working with Governor
Pal i n. Wiile he stated that the intent of HB 4002 and HB 4003
is good; he expressed concern over sone “loopholes” such as
providing $1,200 for all Al askans - even children - instead of
allocating the resource rebate to the people who need it the
nost . He recalled the discussion about the dire need in rura

Al aska. He acknow edged that sonme urban citizens also have dire
needs. He offered hinself as an exanple since he is the head of

t he household, lives alone, and cannot obtain enpl oynent due to
a chronic debilitating visual condition. He opined that
prograns offered in HB 4002 and HB 4003 will provide assistance
to people to <cover their utility bills. He suggested

elimnating the resource rebate for children. He said he thinks
that the resource rebate funding should be spent to enhance
exi sting energy assistance progranms such as weatherization or
tenporary public assistance for heating costs and should be
needs based. He thanked the conmmttee and Governor Palin for
their |eadership and consideration of the resource rebate and
energy i ssues.

5:03: 44 PM

JODI KAREZ stated, after noting that she has 24 years of
transit experience with the Municipality of Anchorage, that
she is testifying on behalf of herself. She expressed
concern that HB 4002 and HB 4003 won't actually enact
change. She remarked, "I think what we need within the
state are ways to |ook at energy use, make our systens
‘“well enough’ so people can change their transportation

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -17- July 17, 2008



patterns. I think we need |ong- and short-term strategies

as far as handling the energy issue.” She recalled that
Representative Salnmon was wondering about | ong-term
strategi es beyond this year. She offered several solutions

for the commttee to consider. She said:

We operate a van pool program within the municipality
that takes 600 people a day — which is about 60,000
mles that we reduce per day in our van pool program —
peopl e conmuting from the [ Matanuska-Susitna] WMat-Su
Valley into Anchorage. W have a waiting list of 700

peopl e. In order to double our van pool fleet, it
woul d cost about $1.7 mllion. At that anount, we
woul d be reducing travel for people in van pools by
120,000 mles per day. |I’d also like to point out
that our public transportation system is seeing a 10
percent increase in ridershinp. We have buses that
need to be replaced; buses statewide need to be
repl aced. And public transportation is a very
i nportant conponent to energy relief. | would like to

see support for a transit trust fund, funding that
could be put into transit systens statewide that are a
little nore guaranteed. For many years our funding
has fluctuated based on a nunber of factors. | think
it would be very hel pful statewide for all the systens
to know that there is a dedicated source — there is a

grow h source for funds — and this is not just as an
Anchorage issue ... again, it is a statew de issue.

Finally, 1 would like to talk about perhaps, funding
for transit fuel. Every tinme that fuel tank pulls up
to our parking lot, | get “a few gray hairs” as |I'm

thinking of what it’s going to cost us and all the
transit systens are feeling that pinch as well. I

guess | would like to throw up sone solutions to HB
4002 and HB 4003 that would again give sone |long-term
i mpacts.

5:07: 02 PM

SARA SCANLAN, Deputy Director, Rural Alaska Community Action
Program 1Inc. (RurAL CAP), thanked nenbers for their efforts.
She related that RurAL CAP is a statew de organization. She
noted that RurAL CAP primarily provides |owincome customers
with services that allow them to “pull thenselves up by their
bootstraps” and becone self-sufficient. She offered her
appreciation for coments made by those who testified such as
the BBNC, who are working on an energy plan and are discussing

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 18- July 17, 2008



the “bigger picture.” She opined that Alaska is in a crisis and
rural Alaska, the state's economc engine, currently faces
“tough tines." The Departnent of Comerce, Community, &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED) expects the price of heating fuel
in renote Alaska villages to rise 30 to 50 percent this w nter
she offered. She noted that the Institute of Social and
Economic Research (ISER) recently reported that residents in
rural conmmunities spend about 41 percent of their income on hone
energy use while those in Anchorage spend about 4 percent. She
further noted that the C TGO s [ Petrol eum Corporation]
Venezuel a-owned program may not serve rural Alaska this year.
She related that people throughout Al aska are facing choices
between purchasing fuel and ot her necessities such as
electricity. She offered that while it seens like a short-term
fix, the resource rebate can help famlies in rural Al aska. M.
Scanlan offered that PCE has been a mainstay by allow ng people
to have benefits that all Al askans should enjoy. She thanked
nmenbers for the “tough work” they have been charged with and the
“good work” they are doing to develop an energy bill that
provi des short- and |ong-term sol utions. She opined that this
crisis will encourage all Al askans to work together and devel op
an energy plan.

5:11: 10 PM
SALLY SPI EKER stated that she rides her bicycle and the “People

Mover” bus in Anchorage. She noted that today she stood on the
bus along with 10 other people, which indicates that the bus was

totally full. She offered that a need and demand exists. She
t hanked the conmttee and the governor for seeking solutions for
Al askans. She wurged nenbers to seek solutions that are

sust ai nabl e, such as renewable fuel and wind power, and to
coordinate a public transportation system throughout the state.
She related that she has lived in rural Alaska in Nonme and that
nost people did not own vehicles, but used shared vans. She
of fered carpooling such as the vans as one solution that reduces
fuel consunption. She opined that the state has the opportunity
and resources to lead the nation and to plan for long-term
solutions for heating, electrical, and transportation needs.

PATRI CK LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP, stated that the AARP has
not taken a position on HB 4002 and HB 4003 since the AARP is
not sure whether the bills are related to energy costs or if
they provide “a second PFD’ based on the state’s incone from
natural resources. He opined that if the resource rebate is
related to energy costs, that AARP asks the commttee to
consider several things because the resource rebate program

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -19- July 17, 2008



represents “a lot of noney.” He then questioned whether the
state should invest the funds in ways that can reduce future
energy costs and usage such as alternative energy research and
devel opnent, as well as for mass transit. He offered that
Anchorage has sone of the |owest fuel costs and according to the
| SER study, Fairbanks suffered a 13 percent increase in one

year. He said, “The Bush Al aska situation, as you well know, is
out rageous conpared to what nost of us are paying for energy.”
He questioned whether all citizens should receive the sane

rebate or if the resource rebate should be allocated based on
who has the highest costs; and whether the rebate should be
given to households or be based on the nunber of occupants per
househol d. He posed a scenario in which a single elderly wonman
lives alone in a house, and next door resides a retired couple

whose energy costs are relatively the sane. He asked, “Shoul d
one household receive twice as nuch resource rebate as the
singl e person?” He answered, “W don't think so - if it is

based on househol ds.”

MR. LUBY opined that the state will “never have as nuch revenue
as it would like” and the state “can never do as much for its
citizens as it would like to do.” He suggested that the

legislature may wsh to base the resource rebate only on
“needs.”

CO CHAI R FAI RCLOUGH conmented that the resource rebate nmay be a
bit confusing to citizens. She noted that the program is a
resource rebate and since Alaska's state constitution provides
Al askans ownership of the state resources, the admnistration is
advocating the rebate should be distributed equally to al
resi dents. Recalling an earlier reference to the energy crisis
as “a perfect storm” she opined that “the stornf is causing
Al aska to exam ne whether it should enpower its citizens through
a resource rebate. She noted that the energy portion of the
rebate is in response to a crisis that the admnistration
observes in Al aska and throughout the nation. She offered that
the [Conmunity and Regional Affairs Standing] commttee has
asked the sane questions as M. Luby.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA concurred with Co-Chair Fai rcl ough
regarding the admnistration’s stance on the resource rebate
I ssue. She added that she is seeking feedback fromcitizens as
to the benefits they desire.

MR, LUBY offered his understanding that the governor is also

seeking the legislature’ s review He said, “W’re relying on
you.”

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 20- July 17, 2008



5:18: 44 PM

DI ANE HOLMES stated that due to the oil windfall the state has
an opportunity to develop long-term solutions for this energy
crisis. She renarked:

We have funds to construct renewable energy facilities
across the state - wind, tidal power, ... geothernal
C. But , in addition, we can do sonething
i medi ately to benefit our towns by creating a |arge
endownent for transportation options |like mass transit
and conmmut er rail, and this isn't j ust for
Sout hcentral, this is for all over [Alaska.]. ... The
time has conme for better options than just paving our
way out of the energy crisis. To help our towns and
our villages, we need to consider this: Don't rescind
the gas tax - use it to support transportation options
such as a mass transit commuter rail across the state.
Do not give individuals the energy credit check - give
the funds to electric, oil and natural gas conpanies
to reduce our heating and electric bills because if
you give it only to individuals, you are not
benefitting businesses, schools, health clinics, fire
departnments, or anyone else - those entities still
have a lot of needs and yet you are thinking of only
giving it to individuals; that is not equitable. But
if you do give it to individuals, don't just use the
PFD. My nei ghbor does not get it for philosophical
reasons, but that person drives and votes. The best
| ong-term solutions would be for ... wnd, solar,
geot her nal . W have the ability to do so rmuch. e
al ready do not have to do too nuch research ... we can
put themin place alnost tonorrow, but we could be the
| eader instead of selling our oil and gas, we could be

selling our research ... on say tidal and wave power

Thank you.
5.:21:28 PM
TOM KAKOSH stated that he suffered a disability and has been
provi ded assistance by state agencies. He noted that the
state’s generosity sonetines my “backfire” and cost the state
much nore than its expenditures. He opined that the resource
rebate is not the proper nechanism to help people that are “in
dire straits” due to energy costs. He expl ained that he found

the adm nistration's testinony at a prior hearing frustrating to

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -21- July 17, 2008



understand since the rationale “did not match the |anguage in
the bill." He offered that the solution to assist Al askans
burdened by energy costs is not to provide “$1,200 to soneone
who owns a fleet of ‘hunmmers’" because in doing so the state

woul d be rewarding those people who created the crisis. He
suggested that sone people may need to sleep in sleeping bags in
frozen hones in rural comunities. He characterized the

situation as an “energent need that should be funded through an
extension of the existing adult public assistance and energy
assi stance prograns. He expressed concern over creating a new
bureaucracy to dispense resource rebate funds, and suggested
that the administrative costs to run such a program could
provide funds for 800 nore people who need them He rel ated
that if the state is truly trying to help Al askans affected [by
the energy crisis,] the state could base it on needs and double
the resource rebate for those below the nedian incone. He
mai ntai ned that there is no correlation between issuing resource
rebates to everyone and solving a problem of “people being hurt
by the energy costs today.”

MR. KAKOSH opined that even if honmes are well insulated, the
inconme might not be available to buy the fuel to heat it. He
stated that the imedi ate needs of Al askans should be net by
providing additional funding to existing progranms - to offer a
one-tine extension for energency needs to supplenment prograns.
He related that the state prograns cannot “keep up wth the
price of oil” which creates a special case in Al aska.

MR. KAKCSH offered his belief that the legislation is poorly
witten and should be rejected and the “tax suspension” should
be voted down. He urged legislators not to reward those who
pur chased “humers.” He offered to answer questions about the
negative inpact on those receiving public assistance.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA recalled a conversation with M. Kakosh.
She offered her understanding that the bill does contain
provisions to ensure that people aren't disadvantaged such as
seni ors.

MR. KAKOSH surmised that he wouldn't be adversely affected,
given his disability status. He offered his understandi ng that
the resource rebate is a one-tine allocation. He noted that the
hol d- harm ess provisions are only extended for four nonths which
could result in the loss of benefits. He posed a scenario in
whi ch a person has a subsidy. He asked:

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -22- July 17, 2008



Way woul dn’t you just fund the nechanism that gave
them the subsidy in the first place — the adult public
assistance — so you would not need to pay the hold-
harm ess costs? |If you funded [the resource rebate]
t hrough Al aska Housing Finance Corporation, adult
public assistance, or energy assistance prograns
directly, that would not count as incone for those
peopl e; you would not have to hold them harm ess for a
| oss. By putting in a hold-harmess <clause [the
state] increases the burden to the fund and ... likely
[Wwll] create a situation [in which] the noney isn't
there to pay the hold-harm ess clause because [the
state] sent out the checks too quickly and there
wasn’'t a reserve left to pay for the hold-harnl ess;
the hold-harm ess may not extend to the full harm that
is created. It’s so silly to cost [the state] nore
money when all you have to do is fund it through that
aid programin the first place.

5:29: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA agreed to research those issues further.
She offered that her suspicion is that it would require
substantial tinme to determine how to add the resource rebate to
the other programs - which will sinply add to the costs, she
opi ned. She offered her belief that “what we all want to do is
make sure we’'re putting the maxi mum anount of noney in the
communities, either through individuals ... or through the
prograns that will really solve the problemin the end.”

MR. KAKOSH suggested speaking to the heads of the respective
agencies to find out what changes would be needed to provide
suppl enental funding of the prograns. He opined that the
resource rebate should be needs based or people who need the
relief nost will suffer. He suggested that some of the funds be
held to address long-term solutions such as using ceram c paint
for insulation. He further suggested that consideration could
be given to the sinple solutions that exist to reduce energy
bills.

5:33: 01 PM

JEFF STEVEN, United Fisherman's Marketing Association (UFMA)

expl ained that the UFMA is a trade association that represents
commercial harvesters who fish in the Qulf of Alaska, Bering
Sea, and Al eutian Islands. He stated that the UFMA supports
both HB 4002 and HB 4003 as currently witten. He further

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 23- July 17, 2008



related his support and the support of UFMA for the information
and rationale contained in Governor Palin's transmttal letter.
He noted his support of PCE He stated that the UFMA believes
that the equal distribution to all residents in the context of
surplus revenues from resource extraction “is the right way to
go here” and to do it any other way woul dn't be right.

MR. STEVEN offered that the fishing industry will be assisted
through the notor fuel tax suspension that is proposed in HB
4004. Although this is not a trenmendous anount of noney, it is
i nportant nonethel ess because of the need and crisis, and wll
nmake the difference to offset fuel costs. He opined that there
is a very significant issue represented by the current trend in
fuel prices, which inpacts fuel intensive industries such as
fishing and the communities that rely on those industries.

Thus, the coastal communities are inpacted. He offered his
belief that the distribution should be nmade equally to the rural
and urban areas. He opined that other ways exist to address

alternative energy and energy conservation incentives and
initiatives. He noted that he is a nenber of the school board
in Kodiak and although he is not speaking on behalf of the
school board, he offered the followi ng coments. He recalled
testimony that fuel costs may affect mgration from the
villages, and agreed that is “a real problemthat we're going to
have to face.” He offered that sone of Kodiak's rural schools
only have 12-14 students and if one famly |eaves due to fuel
costs, the school may need to close. He opined that HB 4002 and
HB 4003 offer relief that mght make the difference. He
concl uded by thanking the commttee.

5:38: 09 PM
ROCHELLE VAN DEN BROEK, Executive Director, Cordova District

Fishernmen United, stated that fishernen and businesses rely on
fuel to perform their jobs. She offered that the high fuel

costs are crippling the fishing industry and snmall rural
comunities. She noted that due to the unusually cold sumer in
Cordova people have had to heat their hones. She expressed

concern about winter fuel costs that she speculated could reach
over $1,000 per nonth, She pointed out that rural [residents]
struggle to upgrade their honmes due to high transportation costs
to ship construction materials. She offered her support for
both HB 4002 and HB 4003 as witten. She stressed that the
resource rebate should be allocated to individuals and not
househol ds since the high cost of fuel affects clothing, food
and ot her consuner goods.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 24- July 17, 2008



5:41: 05 PM

DEBORAH TEMVERMVAN of fered her support for HB 4002 and HB 4003
She said, “lI strongly believe that we need to have this help
with all of the increases in fuel. Last nmonth, | just got 50
gallons and the cost was nornmally nore than | paid |last w nter
|’m just really afraid to see the costs and so nmany people are
| eavi ng.”

5:41: 48 PM

KEI TH VAN DEN BRCEK surmi sed that not many rural residents are
agai nst receiving sonme financial assistance to “get through the
w nter here.” He acknow edged that it is “a band-aid; it’'s
tenporary,” but it wll assist people. He suggested that the
funds should be acconpanied with education so people can spend
the resource rebate w sely. He opined that the resource rebate
should be spent on energy hone inprovenents and people should
find ways that will help reduce dependence on oil in the future.
He commented that if he receives a resource rebate that he wll
replace windows and siding on his hone to nmake energy
i mprovenents.

5:43:54 PM

GARY HAY commented that he noted that ol der vehicles can consumne
nore gasoline than “hunmers” since the vehicles do not use fue
efficiently. He offered that the energy crisis exists outside
the Anchorage area. He noted that he spent 5 years in
Anchorage, followed by 10 years in Tok. He opined that everyone
is affected and that Al askan’s wages have not kept pace wth
rising fuel costs. For exanple, he related that home fuel costs
have risen for diesel fuel by 500 percent in 6 years whereas his
wages have risen only 20 percent during that sanme tineframe. He
acknow edged that people are |eaving the state or are relocating
to Anchorage where the cost of electricity is $.08 or $.12 per

kWh. He noted that energy costs have affected rents. He
further noted that the |legislature passed the weatherization
program However, of the five energy raters contacted in
Fai rbanks, only two responded and only one was willing to travel
to Tok but not until OCctober 7, 2008. He comented that Tok
residents will need to make all weatherization inprovenents
“out - of -pocket” and will not be able to take advantage of the

state’s program He opined that the resource rebate in HB 4002
is “a great idea” and the sooner it can be distributed, the
sooner residents can pay outstanding fuel bills. He conmment ed
that fuel distributers are “on the verge of bankruptcy” since

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 25- July 17, 2008



they have carried outstanding accounts past the nornmal
ti meframne. He pointed out that people have been receiving
notices that the conpanies cannot deliver any nore fuel unti
the outstanding fuel bills are paid. He further opined that
nost people in rural Alaska favor HB 4002 and that nost people
wi |l spend resource rebate checks for fuel costs.

MR. HAY offered, with regard to PCE, that the state should
create a subsistence power program in which the state
determines a “subsistence anmount of nonthly power” and a
“statewide kWh cost” such that all Alaskan citizens would
receive a subsistence anmount of electricity at the subsidized
cost. He stated that the program would not be needs based and
woul d encourage conservation since the rate Dbeyond the
subsi stence nonthly all owance woul d be based on the higher | ocal
rate.

5:48:42 PM

SHEI LA HOWE stated that she is a “house-bound” <citizen
Further, she stated that she and her husband are senior citizens
on a fixed incone. While the [resource rebate] “would conme in
handy” she noted that she has been able to cut her power bills
by $200 per nonth through hone inprovenents such as replacing

w ndows, insulating her hone, and replacing appliances wth
energy efficient appliances. She opined that rural Al askans’
needs are “so much nore critical” due to transportation costs.
She expressed her concern that transportation costs will “kill
the villages.” She suggested that the resource rebate should be
needs- based. She further suggested that rural Al askans need
imrediate relief since the barges cannot travel during the
W nter. She opined that alternate energy sources need to be

i npl enented next year that are not based on fossil fuels. She
t hanked the commttee for allowng her to participate and hear
testimony from citizens throughout the state. She noted a
community in the Hebrides Islands, |located at the sane |atitude
as Anchorage, is “off the grid’” and totally sustainabl e.

5:51: 23 PM

GARY HART stated, after relating that rural Al askans need help
i mredi ately, that the intent of HB 4002 and HB 4003 is good, but
if the funds were provided to nmunicipalities for energy that the
funding would be applied to where it's needed. He recalled a
pl an proposed by Bernie Karl, in which the state would create a
“state fuel cooperative” to be funded by PFDs of interested
i ndi vi dual s who sought to join the coop. Thus, the gas and fuel

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 26- July 17, 2008



prices would be obtained at a set rate. He stated that M.
Karl’s figure showed gas rates at $1 per gallon. He offered his
support for this common sense program that could be inplenented
in 90 days. He stated that landlords are raising rents by $200
to $300 per nonth in None and urged legislators to provide
relief. He opined that fuel costs are “not going to get any
better soon.”

5:53: 05 PM

BARBARA MADI SON stated her support for HB 4002 and HB 4003. She
further stated that she is especially interested in the PCE
since costs have risen dramatically. She noted that her region
pays $.32 per kWh and a surcharge of $.52 per kW since barges
have not been able to reach the area. She pointed out that city
services for water and sewer costs have also risen. She
characterized HB 4002 as a “good short-term solution” since fuel
costs are $8.40 per gallon, which may increase to over $10 per
gal | on. Noting that she paid $10 for one cabbage, she related
that residents struggle to put food on the table. Thus, fuel
costs affect all products that go to rural Al aska, she further
not ed. She explained that citizens are investigating
alternative energy sources and are applying for grants to nake
their homes energy efficient. She suggested that one option may
be to provide assistance directly to wutility conpanies and
i ndividual villages rather than providing funds directly to
i ndi vi dual s. She noted her agreement with many others who' ve
testified on this issue.

5:57:10 PM

CECRCE @QUJY offered his support for PCE and the resource rebate
program to provide rural residents supplenental incone. He
noted that fuel prices are at an “all-time high” and electric
rates are increasing. He opined that people are meking “hard
choi ces” between fuel and utility costs. He stated that rura
Al askans may need to “shut off generators” this wnter. He
stated that rural Alaska is in “dire need of assistance.” He
noted that the proposed energy rebate will help pay for costs to

heat homes and pay for electrical costs. He asked the conmmttee
to support HB 4002 and HB 4003.

5:59: 23 PM
ALVERN CLEVELAND stated that Noorvik is in the Northwest Arctic

Bor ough. He stated that the resource rebate of $1,200 nay be
worth nore in urban communities, but will not last long in

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -27- July 17, 2008



Nort hwest Al aska. He noted that fuel prices are so high in
rural Al aska that sone residents can't afford to live in the

area and mght have to nobve to an urban area. He asked
| egislators to help support rural Alaska and to take actions
that will help those in the villages. He thanked | egislators

for their help.
6: 00: 49 PM

JAVES HOTAI opined that the $1,200 resource rebate “won't nake a
dent in the cost of trying to survive in the winter of Al aska.”
He stated that the Al aska State Constitution mandates that the
resources of the state shall be used to the benefit of all
Al askans. He said:

Currently, all Alaskans are not enjoying any benefit
from the mneral resources of the state. The state
has a coffer brimmng wth noney. The oil conpanies
have coffers brimmng wth noney. The rest of us are
| ooking for coffins ‘cause we’'re going to die of
starvation in this state or freeze to death. W need
to take the state’'s royalty oil and turn sone of it
over to the local refiner at $15 a barrel - at cost -
with instructions to the refiners ... to pass savings
on to the consuners of the state.

MR. HOTAI opined that people cannot survive in the state unless
the cost of heating oil is reduced. He stressed that the
| egislature needs to realize that time is short, wnter 1is
i npendi ng, and the cost of oil nust be reduced. He stated his
support for the resource rebate, perhaps dispensing $1,200 every
two nonths until the state can find solutions to the energy
crisis. He further stated that $1,200 will only purchase 200
gal l ons of gasoline or diesel in Valdez, which will not heat the
average home for a nonth. He characterized the $1,200 as a
“pitiful attenpt to placate the masses.” He related that the
“people who live in the Bush” are the people everyone is proud
of — of the lifestyle in Alaska - that’'s a dream However,
right now, he stressed that it is a “nightmare.” He stated that
the only option that exists is to find ways to reduce fuel
costs. O herwi se, “you pour noney, good after bad, into the
pockets of the refiners.” He said, “W own the oil, every
i ndi vi dual Al askan owns the oil, the royalty; we are a partner
in the mneral industry in Al aska. It’s a business; it’s not
socialism— it’'s a business.” He remarked, “W are getting very
little dividend, if any, from our business.” He offered his
concern for his neighbors, friends, and relatives, and others

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 28- July 17, 2008



across the state. He stated that the cost of food is

astronom cal due to transportations costs. He nmaintained the
solution lies in reducing diesel costs. He suggested that the
state should buy the refineries and run them He urged
legislators to work with refineries to provide reasonabl e diesel
costs instead of offering resource rebates. He said, “W have
no other way of surviving unless we jointly reduce the cost of
fuel.” He thanked |legislators for their tine.

6: 06: 16 PM

JAMES FLOYD inquired as to whether the state has considered the
devaluation of the U S. dollar, which has fallen even against
the peso in Mexico, he stated. He related that the cost of oi

was at $137 with speculation that it could rise to $200 or

possi bly higher depending on world events. He maintained his
concern over the devaluation of the dollar, since the resource
rebate is based on dollars. He wondered if the |legislature

woul d consider rebating gallons of [diesel] or cords of wood
i nstead of dollars.

CO CHAIR LeDQUX noted that the bill before the legislature is
based on dollars. After first determining that no one else
wi shed to testify, Co-Chair LeDoux related that the next hearing
is scheduled for July 22, 2008, in Juneau and that the agenda

woul d include testinony by various state agencies. She rel ated
that the conmittee will take continue public testinmony on July
23, 2008.

[ HB 4002 and HB 4003 were hel d over. ]
ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adjourned at 6:09 p. m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 29- July 17, 2008



